

www.jamapunji.pk











Key features:

Licensed Entities Verification
Scam meter*
Jamapunji games*
Tax credit calculator*
Company Verification

Insurance & Investment Checklist FAQs Answered

Stock trading simulator (based on live feed from KSE)

Knowledge center

Risk profiler*

Financial calculator

Subscription to Alerts (event notifications, corporate and regulatory actions)

Jamapunji application for mobile device

Online Quizzes







^{*}Mobile apps are also available for download for android and ios devices

CONTENTS

Corporate Information	02
Mission Statement, Vision Statement & Corporate Strategy	03
Notice of Annual Review Meeting	04
Directors' Report (English & Urdu)	05
Six Year Financial Summary	15
Statement of Compliance	17
Review Report	20
Auditors' Report to the certificate Holders	21
Shari'ah Advisor's Report	22
Balance Sheet	23
Profit & Loss Account	24
Statement of Comprehensive Income	25
Cash Flow Statement	26
Statement of Changes in Equity	27
Notes to the Financial Statement	28
Detail of Categories of Certificate Holders	47
Categories of Certificate Holders	47
Pattern of Certificate Holding	48

CORPORATE INFORMATION

IBL Modaraba Management (Pvt.) Limited Modaraba Management Company

Arslan Khan Khakwani Naveed Amin Shiraz Butt Chairman/Director Director Director Board of Directors

Chief Executive Officer Shiraz Butt

Company Secretary Hassan Fareed

Chief Financial Officer Zeeshan Ahmed Internal Auditor Hasnain Shafqat

Audit Committee Chairman

Naveed Amin Arslan Khan Khakwani Muhammed Ilyas Member Secretary

Sharia'ah Advisor Dr. Salman Ahmed Khan

Legal Advisor M/s. Holscott International [Legal Services]

Auditors to Modaraba M/s. Horwath Hussain Chaudhry & Co.

Charted Accountants

Bankers

Habib Bank Limited – Islamic Banking Meezan Bank Limited MCB Islamic Bank Limited

Corp Tec Associates (Pvt.) Limited Registrar

503 E, Johar Town, Lahore.

Registered Office Room #1, 87 Aurangzeb Block,

New Garden Town, Lahore.

Principal Office 87 Aurangzeb Block, New Garden Town, Lahore.

MISSION STATEMENT

Our mission is to strive for continued excellence in providing quality services to the business community as a whole, with the ultimate goal to increase the value of certificate holders.

VISION STATEMENT

Our vision is to establish First IBL Modaraba as the benchmark reference for all Islamic Financia Institutions for the provision of financial services in line with increasing needs of our esteemed customers and to become the premier financial service organization that provides the highest level of quality service while remaining innovative and responsive to ever-changing customer demands.

CORPORATE STRATEGY

We, First IBL Modaraba, being a multi purposes Modaraba and an Islamic financial institution, are engaged in various Shari'ah compliant products, namely; financing through Ijarah, Murabahah and Musharakah arrangements and investments in Shari'ah compliant securities.

In order to maintain diversified business activities in different sectors of economy, we do not only focus them for Corporate and SMEs Sectors but we also facilitate proprietorship and partnership firms and the individuals in their businesses, which play an effective and important role in the markets.

Keeping in light the present micro and macro economic scenarios in the country, we maintain and apply cautious and well maintained risk management policies in extending the new business rather we target the selective/ quality clientele so as to minimize the risk of default in the repayments.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL REVIEW MEETING (ARM)

Notice is hereby given to the certificate holders of First IBL Modaraba (FIBLM) that $18^{\rm th}$ Annual Review Meeting [ARM] of certificate holders will be held on Monday November 26, 2018 at 11:00 a.m. at principal office of First IBL Modaraba, 87-Aurangzaib Block, New Garden Town, Lahore to review the performance of First IBL Modaraba for the year ended June 30, 2018.

The persons entitled to attend the meeting will be those certificate holders whose names are entered in the register of certificate holders seven (7) days before November 26, 2018.

Company Secretary November 05, 2018

Directors' Report

The Board of Directors of M/s. IBL Modaraba Management (Private) Limited [IBLMM], the Management Company of First IBL Modaraba [FIBLM], is pleased to present to the certificate holders the Audited Financials Statement of First IBL Modaraba for the year ended June 30, 2018 along with Auditors' Report thereon.

Financial Results:

Summarized results for the year under report are as under:

June 2018	June 2017
Rs In "000"	
34,643	31,235
1,046	16,164
35,641	36,190
4.783	1,111
43.04	10,007
	34,643 1,046 35,641 4.783

Review of operations:

During the period under review the management of FIBLM mainly focused on business enhancement and majorly invested in Ijarah, Musharikah and Murabaha segments. The management put its best efforts to minimize its operating loss and increase of operational profitability.

The significant increase in major income generating segments is as follows:

Income Segment	Increase
Ijarah	30.53%
Musharikah	5.73%
Murabaha	100%

The significant decrease in operating expenses is as follows:

Income Segment	Decrease
Operating expenses	11.59%

In the environment of competition with commercial banks, leasing companies, other giant financial institutions, political un-certainty due to elections in the country and stock market downfall; the modaraba managed to maintain its progress. The analysis of operating income as compared with the preceding period is as follows:

	FY 2018	FY 2017	%
Income Segment	Rs. in"000"		%
Ijarah	20,231	15,499	30.53%
Murabaha	64.466	1.6	100%
Musharikah	6,707	6,343	5.73%
Investment property	7,495	7,495	1,5
Profit on deposits	144.44	1,424	-89.88%
Income from short term investments	9	4.72	-100%
Income from operations	34.641	31,233	10.91%

The analysis of operating expenses as compared with the preceding period is as follows:

Amount of the Co.	FY 2018	FY 2017	%
Expenses	Rs. in	Rs. in"000"	
Operating expenses	21,191	23,970	-11.59%
Other operating expenses	818.43	465.13	75.91%
(H 1722-17)	22,009	24,435	-9.92%

During the financial year 2017-18 the management of modaraba managed to recover Rs. 0.840 million from unverifiable receivables and the recovery team is putting its best efforts to recover the remaining amount under this head.

During the reporting period the modaraba further issued modaraba certificate worth Rs. 15 million (other than right issue), thus as on reporting datacertificate capital stood at Rs.216.875 million as compared to Rs.201.875 million in the preceding period. Further the management is in coordination with various national and

international investors/ stake holders for further enhancement of modaraba capital buring the period under review, the Modaraba suffered a loss of Rs. 1.421 million on its available for sale investments classified under short term investments in the balance sheet. The reason behind the loss was bearish trend of stock market in the last quarter of the financial year ended June 30, 2018.

As on reporting date the reserves of modaraba stood at Rs.48.385 million as compared to Rs.49.798 million in the preceding period.

Attendance of board meetings:

Sr#	Name of director	No of meetings	No. of meetings attended	Leave of absence
1	Dr. Hasan Sohaib Murad	04	04	0
2	Mr. Shaheen Rashid	04	04	0
3	Mr. Arslan Khan Khakwani	04	04	0
4	Mr. Naveed Amin	04	04	0

Composition of board of directors:

During FY 2017-18 the numbers of directors were as follows:

Number of director	Male	Female	Total
Number of directors	04	0	04

The composition of board of directors' during FY 2017-18 was as follows:

Sr#	Name of director	Туре
1	Dr. Hasan Sohaib Murad	Executive
2	Mr. Shaheen Rashid	Non-Executive
3	Mr. Arslan Khan Khakwani	Non-Executive
4	Mr. Naveed Amin	Independent

Mr. Shaheed Rashid died on May 15, 2018, and Dr. Hasan Sohaib Murad Chief Executive/ Director of IBL Modaraba Management (Private) Limited died on September 10, 2018.

On October 18, 2018 Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan approved appointment of Mr. Shiraz Butt as new Chief Executive Officer/ Director of IBL Modaraba Management (Private) Limited.

As of date of directors' report the composition of board of director is as follows:

Sr#	Name of director	Туре
1	Mr. Naveed Amin	Independent
2	Mr. Shiraz Butt	Executive
3	Mr. Arslan Khan Khakwani	Non-Executive

Operating data for six years:

The operating data of modaraba for six (06) years is annexed to this report.

Pattern of certificate holding:
The detailed pattern of certificate holding as at June 30, 2018 as required under the code is annexed to this

There has been no trading in the shares of the modaraba by any of its directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary or their spouses and minor children unless specified in the financial statements,

Stock Market Review:

After experiencing a volatile 2017 in which the Stock market registered a negative return, the market participants finally appear to be gaining back their lost confidence as 2018 has witnessed a much better performance and resilience of the market.

This is supported by the recent recovery witnessed in the KSE-100 index which had witnessed a low of 37,919 points on December 19, 2017; since then, it has regained around 15% after rallying more than 6,000 points to cross the level of 44,000 pts. Foreigners' outflow on account of selling by Frontier Market funds when Pakistan entered the MSCI Emerging Market category and political as well as macroeconomic concerns were the chief determinants which pulled the local bourse southwards last year. However, a number of key positive developments have taken place lately that have improved the market outlook and that will set the future course of the stock market going into 2018-19.

Successful passage of the delimitation bill in Senate was a major trigger, which potentially paved the way for timely General Elections. This has been reinforced further by the successful conclusion of Senate Elections as well as General Elections.

Furthermore, the impending announcement of tax amnesty scheme, which is expected to widen the tax net and repatriation of foreign assets held by Pakistanis, could prove to be another respite which should also improve the confidence of investors in the market.

The much awaited devaluation of Pak Rupee finally materialized, which is expected to draw interest of foreign investors back towards Pakistan's Stock Market. It is pertinent to note here that after being net sellers to the tune of around \$500 m during 2017, foreigners commenced the new calendar year with a net buy of about \$85 m during the month of January 2018. This is a positive indication that the large scale net selling by foreigners has subsided and we can expect net buying during this year given the attractive valuations.

The index is trading at a forward P/E of around 8.5x, compared to Asia Pacific regional average of 14.4x, a discount of around 40%. Ongoing energy and infrastructure development projects worth over \$60 bn under the umbrella of CPEC are also well on track, successful materialization and implementation of which will stimulate economic activity in the country. This, coupled with improved security situation, strong GDP growth and robust corporate profitability shall bode well for our stock market.

Pakistan Economic Review:

The estimates for FY18 also suggest that compared to FY17 all the three sectors remained vibrant. Agriculture sector on the back of improved cotton crop and record sugarcane is expected to comfortably surpass its growth

target for FY18. Industrial sector, reflecting a robust domestic demand, is set to achieve a 10-year high growth. The services sector is estimated to maintain almost its last year growth based on spillover impact of healthy performance by commodity producing sector. In the same encouraging vein, inflation remained within manageable and supportive levels, largely owing to decline in its food component.

The combination of robust economic activity and low inflation had two important implications. First, it boosted confidence in the economy, which along with affordable cost of financing induced firms to borrow substantially. In particular, energy, textiles, and cement sectors focused more on capacity expansion to gear up for growing domestic demand. A healthy rise was also observed in working capital requirements; while the consumer finance posted the highest Jul-Mar flow during the last 12-years, driven mainly by a surge in auto and housing finance. Ample liquidity in the wake of maturity of government securities also supported this credit off-take. The second impact relates to increased consumption, which along with recovering oil prices, further inflated the import payments. Higher import bill, despite 10 consecutive months of exports growth and rising workers' remittances, resulted in record widening of current account deficit. Even higher financial inflows from IFIs, bilateral sources, and issuance of sovereign bonds remained insufficient. Thus, the remaining payment gap fell on the country's FX reserves, which fell to only two months of import cover by end-March, 2018. The foreign exchange market also remained volatile and PKR depreciated by 9.2 percent against the US\$ during Jul-Mar period of FY18. These external sector developments started to impact inflation as well. The pass-through of rising global oil prices to domestic fuel prices pushed up the energy component of inflation, as the government passed on its impact to consumers. Similarly, the impact of PKR depreciation started to translate into costly imports and shoring up of inflationary expectations. On the fiscal side, the healthy growth in revenue could not keep up pace with a sharp rise in fiscal expenditure in the Q3-FY18. Particularly, the development expenditure related to infrastructure and power projects increased sharply, with major contribution coming from provinces. As a result, the fiscal deficit in Q3-FY18 stood higher than corresponding period last year. To finance the fiscal gap, the government had to rely both on SBP's borrowing and external sources. In particular, the government borrowings from SBP stood at Rs2.2 trillion in Q3-FY18 – the highest level in a quarter. External debt, owing both to higher commercial loans and revaluation impact of the PKR depreciation, also rose considerably. In short, ensuring the continuity of expansion in economic activities and low inflation would depend on containing of current account and fiscal deficits. As these vulnerabilities are posing challenges to Pakistan's current growth cycle, implementation of both short-term and medium term policies would be crucial in this regard. In shortterm, concerted efforts could be made to rationalize fiscal expenditures given the tax relief measures approved in budget FY19. In the medium term, reforms would be needed to expand tax base besides enhancing efficiency of the existing system. Simultaneously, there is a need to arrange external financing in the short term. Also, more policy measures are required to contain the widening trade deficit. For this purpose, it is also crucial to resolve structural issues affecting exports competiveness.

The real GDP growth is estimated at a 13-year high of 5.8 percent in FY18, along with a benign inflationary environment. However, deterioration in external balances and high fiscal deficit remains a major source of

Following are the highlights of the Pakistan Economy for the year 2017-18

- •The country's Gross Domestic Product recorded 13-year highest growth of 5.8 %:
- The agriculture, industrial and service sectors of Pakistan grew by 3.8 percent.
 Economy continued to benefit from growth oriented initiatives, including higher development spending,
- low inflation, vigilant monetary policy, and CPEC related investment thus providing impetus for economic recovery.

 -High and broad based growth in agriculture sector in last 13 years was achieved on the back of
- initiatives such as expansion in credit to agriculture sector, better quality seeds and timely availability
- of agriculture inputs.

 Large Scale Manufacturing recorded a growth of 6.13 %, highest in ten years.
- Industrial sector growth improved by 5.80 %, highest in ten years.
 Manufacturing grew by 6.24 percent, highest in 11 years.
 Services sector witnessed a growth of 6.43 percent in last two years.

- Export growth is improving and the extension of the GSP plus status for next two years by the EU is a positive development. The exports growth during nine months of current year continued unbroken.

 National income remained less than expenditures during FY 2018 when compared with FY 2017 which
- resulted increase in Saving-Investment gap.

- Cotton production stood at 11.935 million bales as compared to 10.671 million bales in 2016-17 and recorded growth of 11.8 percent.
- During 2017-18, rice production reached historically high level of 7,442 thousand tons and recorded an increase of 8.7 percent over the production of 6,849 thousand tons last year.
- Sugarcane production witnessed another record production season as its production reached to 81.102 million tons by showing an increase of 7.4 percent over the last year's production of 75.482 million tons.
- · Pakistan exports had started increasing as the negative effect has bottoming out.
- •Foreign Investment picked up the pace from last year's level, with both direct and portfolio investment to the gains. Net FDI inflows rose 4.4 percent to 2.1 billion dollars in July-March against 2 billion dollars during same period last year.

Future Outlook:

Low profit rates, stock market crash tough competition with commercial and other giant financial institutions which hit the profitability of modaraba sector but despite of this during the reporting period the operating income of modaraba was significantly improved. The management is taking concrete steps for more improved business plan, making internal controls more efficient and implementing more efficient marketing and business strategies.

The major focus of management was on enhancement of certificate capital. In this regards Rs. 15 million were added as certificate capital during the period. Further the management is approaching various national and international investors for equity enhancement. Near future it is probable that the modaraba will get positive response from them.

Auditors:

The present auditors M/s. Horwath Hussain Chaudhury, Chartered Accountants, are due for retirement and since they have completed their five (05) years as external auditors of the Modaraba, were not eligible for re appointment. Hence the board has appointed M/s. RSM Avais Hyder Liaquat Nauman & Co, Chartered Accountant as external auditors of the Modaraba for the period ending June 30, 2019 subject to the approval of the Registrar Modarabas, SECP Islamabad.

Acknowledgement:

The Board remains thankful to Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, Registrar Modaraba, State Bank of Pakistan, and NBFI & Modaraba Association of Pakistan for providing us their usual support and guidance.

The Board appreciates and pay gratitude to the certificate holders and customers for entrusting their confidence on us and we assure them to maintain adequate internal controls, providing personalized services and maintain an ideal environment of good corporate governance in all areas of activities.

Finally, the Board appreciates the dedication and hard work put in by the management and all staff members of First IBL Modaraba.

For & On behalf of the Board

Shiraz Butt Chief Executive Officer October, 26, 2018

ڈائز یکٹر کی رپورٹ

میسرز آئی بی ایل مضار بینجنٹ (پرائیویت) کمیپیٹار آئی بی ایل ایم ایم) ، جوفرست آئی بی ایل مضار به (ایف آئی بی ایل مضار به بینجنٹ کمپیٹی ہے ، کے بورؤ آف ڈائر میکٹرز ، کی طرف سے 30 جون 2018 کو افغام پذیر ہونے والے سال کی تقدیق شدہ (آئی ہڈ) مالیاتی وستاویزات (ایٹیمٹنٹس) بیٹ آڈیٹر کی رپورٹ کو چیش کرتے ہوئے خوجی محسوں کرتا ہے۔

مالياتى نتائج:

بیان کرده سال کے دوران مالیاتی نتائج کا خلاصد درج ذیل ہے؟

روپے"000" پیل

	جون2018	يون2017
آي غِنْكَ آهان	34,643	31,235
دىكرآ بدن	1,046	16,164
افراجات	35,641	36,190
بنندفیں(10 نیسد)	4.783	1,111
مالف منافع بعداد قيكن	43.043	10,007

آيريش كاجائزه:

زیر غورمت کے دوران (ایف آئی فی ایل ایم) کی انتظامید کی زیادہ آئی ہے۔ تمام کوشیس آپرینگ نصان کو محمر کے اور آپریشل منافع میں اضافے پر لگا کیں۔

زياد وآمدني بيداكرنے والے يكمنكس ميں اہم اضافے كي تفصولت ورج ويل بين:

اشاق	آمدنی کے طبقات
30.53%	اجاره
5.73%	مثارك
100%	مرابحة

آپریٹنگ اخراجات میں اہم کی کی تفصیل درج ذیل ہے:

کی .	اثراجات کے طبقات
11.59%	آ پرینگ اخراجات

تھارتی جیکوں، لیزگک کینیوں، دیگر بڑے مالیاتی اداروں ہے مسابقت، ملک میں انکیشن کی جدے غیرتینی سیاس صورتھال ادر تصنص منڈی کا گر جانے کے ماحول میں مضاربہ نے اپنی نموکو برقر ارزکھا۔

موجودہ اور گذشتہ سال کی آپریٹنگ امدنی کا تقابلی تجزید درج ذیل ہے:

%	الى ال 2017	الى ال 2018	آمدنی کے طبقات
30.53%	15,499	20,231	اجاره
100%	0	64.466	مرابح
5.73%	6,343	6,706	مشارك
0%	7,495	7,495	جائيداديس سرماييكاري
-89.88%	1,424	144.55	ۇياش پرمنافع
-100%	472.84	(3)	قليل المدت سرمانيكارى سے آمدن
10.91%	31,325	34,643	آ بریش ہے آمدن

موجوده سال اور گذشته سال کی آپریلنگ اخراجات کا تقابلی تجزید درج ذیل ہے:

%	الى ال 2017	الى مال 2018	اخراجات كےطبقات
-11.59%	23,970	21,191	آپریننگ اخراجات
75.91%	465.13	818.43	ويكرآ يرينتك اخراجات
-9.92%	24,435	22,009	

سال7<u>201</u>-18 مین مضاربه کی انتظامیه نیف در ملین روپ یکی غیر تقدیق شده وسولیال کیس اور ریگوری کیم ای بهترین کوششین کرروی ہے کہ ہاتی وسولیا بیوں کو جلد ازجلد سمال کروا تھے۔

ڈرٹورمت میں مضارب نے مزید 15 ملین روپ کی سرما ہے کاری کے سرٹینگیت کی اعلام درائٹ سرٹینگیٹ کی کا جراد کردیا ہے اورائن طرح سرٹینگیٹ کی کا جراد کردیا ہے اورائن سرٹینگردی ہے۔ 201.875 ملین روپ کے مقابلے میں 216.875 ملین روپ ہو گیا۔ مزید مربانگیٹ کسی ملی کے سربات میں امنا نے کے لیے انتظام پین قدی اور بین الاقوا کی سربایہ کاردی ہے۔ رپورنگ کی تاریخ پرمضار ہے کے فائز کا خشر سال ای مدت میں 48.788 ملین روپ کے مقابلے میں 48.386 ملین روپ رپ کے سا

بورو کی اجلاس (میثنگ) میں حاضری:

	اجلاس		والريكة كالمام	نمبرشار
غيرحاضري	تُركت	اجلاس كى تغداد		
0	04	04	جناب داكتر حسن صهيب مراو	4
0	04	04	جنابشا بين رشيد	2
0	04	04	جناب ارسلان خان خاكواني	3
0	04	04	جناب تويدايين	4

بورژ آف ۋائر يكٹرز كى ساخت:

مالى سال 18-2017 يى بورد آف دائير يكثرز كى تغدادورج ديل تقى-

گورت *	"	ۋائرىكىثرى تىغىداد
0	04	ۋائزىكىشرى تغداد

مالىسال 18-2017 مى يورۇ آفۋائىر كىشىز زى ساخت درى ۋىلىتنى _

7	ۋاتز يكثر كانام	فبرغار
الكريكيونيو	ۋاكۈھىن سېيب	1
فيرا يكزيكيو ثيو	جناب شاجين رشيد	2
فيرا تكزيكيوثيو	جناب ارسلان خان خاكوا في	3
آزاد	جناب تويدا ثان	4

جناب ثابين دشيد صاحب مورى 15 متى 2018 اور جناب اكترصن صهيب مراد صاحب مورى 10 متر 2018 كوانقال فرما كيد

18 آگۈر 2018 كو سىكى دىئىزانىڭا ئېچىچىكىيىش قى پاكىتان ئىشىرازىت ساھىپى باھورى اى او اورۇائزىكىش آئى كى ايلى مضار يەيىنىچىنىش (پرائىچەيىڭ) كىمىيىڭ تىقررى كى مىقلورى دے دى۔ رپورىگ تارىخ ئىش بورۇق فەلئىرىكى سافت درجى دىل ب

7	فالزيكركانام	نبرعد
Tile	جناب نويدائين	1
ا يگز يکيوڻيو	جتاب شيرازيث	2
فيرا يكز يكيوثيو	جناب ارسلان خان خاكواني	3

چىسالول كا آپريننگ ۋيٹا (اعدادوشار):

مضارب مح كذشته 6سالول كاآيريننگ اعدادوشار الرويدث كساتحونسلك جين-

سر فيفيكييف ركفنے كار جحان:

كار يوريث كونش ك ضابط ك مطابق سرفيقيك و كه جائي كار قان كاتفصيل اس ديورث ك ساته خسلك ب-

مضاریہ کے مفکیلیس/شیئز میں کی دائر میشرز ہی ای اون کی ایف او بہلی میگریئری ایان کے شریک حیات یا نابانٹے بچوں کی طرف سے کوئی خرید وقر و فت قبیس ہوئی تاوقتیکہ اس کو مالیاتی و متاویزات میں قابرند کیا گیا ہو۔

شاك ماركيث كاجائزه:

2017 کے شدید تیجر پذیر تجرب کے بعد جس میں شاک مارکیٹ نے متحق سے کارخ کیا اور آخر میں ایسا محسوس ہوتا ہے کہ اس کا احتماد عالی ہوتا شروح ہوگیا ہے کیونکہ 2018 میں اب تک منڈی نے بہت بھتر کارکردگی اور امجر نے کی قوت دکھائی ہے۔

بینٹ میں ڈی کینٹھنٹ ٹر کا کامیابی ہے ہاس ہوں تھی اصل محرک تھا جس نے مام احماب کا پروقت ہوہ ممکن بنایا۔ بینٹ کے اختاب کے ساتھ ساتھ عام احماب ہونے ہاں بات کو منبوط کیا ہے۔ علاوہ ازیں بھی ایمنٹی اسلیم کا بہتری لانے کے اعلان سے تو تع ہے بھی کا بیٹ وسیع ہوگا اور پاکستانیوں کے پاس فیرطول بیسا اٹا الہ جات کی پاکستان میں واپھی جیسے اقد ام منڈی میں سرماییکاروں کے امتی کو بعال کرنے میں ایک ایجیا قدم جاہت ہوگا۔

روپے کہ قدر میں بہت درسے متوقع کی ہا آخرہ ویکی ہے جس ہے ہو تق ہے کہ بغیر کل سریا یہ اول والحجی پاکستان کے صوب منڈی کی جانب کر واسکے گیا۔ بیباں بیہ بات فوٹ کرنی مناسب ہوگی کی 2017 میں میں 500 ملین امریکی والر کے فروخت کرنے والے فیم ملیوں نے جنوری 2018 میں تاریخ کی والرکی خریداری کرکے بنے سال کا آغاز کیا ہے۔ بیا یک جنب اشارہ ہے کہ بوے پیانے کی خاص فروخت کم ہوچکی ہے اور ہم توقع کر کیا جسٹ لقد رہوئی تو سال کے ووران بیا خاص خریداری۔ میں تبدیل ہوسکتی ہے۔

الله يكس الشياء بيسفك علاقا في اوسط 14.4 كمقالب E/P فارور ولين ويناقر بيا5.8 مرباء جوتقر بيا40 فيصد و كاونث ب-

CPEC کی چھتری سے 160 در اس مریکی و الر سے جاری و القی اور افغر اسٹریکر کے ترقیق منصوب ورست ست میں جاری بین اوران پر کامیاب مملدر آنداور نفاذ سے ملک کی معاشی سرگرمیوں میں اضافیہ وقع اورام میں ورست میں کہ انداز (GDP) مستکلم فورادر نگری اوران کی منافع بیشی کے اشار سے فاہر کرتے ہیں کہ ہماری تصمیر مندی بہتری و کھائے گا۔

اقتصادي جائزه:

تخیینہ ہے کے سال 2017 کے مقابیلے میں آنام سیکنز متحرک رہے۔ بہتر کہا تا اور رکارڈ کئے کی فسلوں ہے توقع ہے کہ سال 2018 میں نوع کا بدف آسانی ہے حاصل کر ایاجائے گا بستھتی سیکٹر ، مکلی طلب میں اضافہ دکھار ہا ہے اور حق ہے کہ 10 سال کی بلندترین نموحا کس کرنے نہ مات سے بیکٹر کی اقترین کے بھتر مند کا درکردگی ہے۔ اس حوصل افتر ان حول میں مقدا کے جزار میں کمی دوجہ سے افراط زرایتی انتقاعی حدوث من راواور معاون سیلے بریا۔

بری معاشی سرگرمیوں اور افراط در سے اشتراک کے دوائرات فرائد ہیں۔ پہلا، یہ کہ معیشت یراعی و شااف کرتا ہے، جس میں قابل برداشت سر مایکاری کی لاگت اوراداروں کو زیاوہ قرضہ لینے پر راغب کرتی ہے۔ ملک میں برحتی ہوئی طلب کو بیرا کرنے کے لیے خاص طور پر ، تو انا کی ، ٹیکسائل اور سیٹ سکٹرز نے اپنی توجہا بچی بیداور کی استعداد میں اینانے پر رکھی ہے۔ ور کنگ کھیٹل کی طلب میں ایک معت مندا ضافہ کیما آبیا بھوتی تنسکات کی مدت تھ ہونے ہے وافر ساایت نے بھی قر ضری فراہمی میں اضافے میں مدوکی۔ وسراائر اُبعلق استعمال میں اضافہ ہے بھس نے بھال ہوتی ہوتی تیل کی قیمتوں ش ورآمات کی ادائیگیوں کو برحادیا۔ بلندتر ورآمات کے مل مسلس 10 ماہ کی درآمات میں اضافیاور برحتی ہوئی کارکنوں کی جانب سے ترسیل زرکا متیجہ جاری کھنے کا برحابور رکارڈ خسارہ ہے۔ FII کی جانب سے بلند تربالیاتی فراجی براورانہ وسائل اور سوورن اونڈر کا اجراء ہونا کافی رہا۔ اس طرح ہے، باقی اوائیگیوں کے خلا کو پر کرنے کا او جود ملک کے ذخائر پر جزا، جوبار چ 2018 ے آخرتک گر کرور آ ہدات کی دوماہ کی خرورت بوری کرنے کے رو گئے ۔ فیریکی زرمبادلہ کی مبادلہ منڈی آخرینے بریرہی ادرسال 2018 مارچ ش یا کستانی روپے کی قدر میں امریکی ڈالر کے مقابلے میں 2.9 فيعمد كى بوئى۔ عالمي تيل كى قيمتوں ميں برجتے ہوئے اشاغے نے ملكى ايندهن كى قيمتوں كو برھا كرافرار از كے ان ان اللہ اللہ كا مارف برؤال ديا تھا۔ اس طرح سے پاکستانی روپے کی قدرمیں کی کے اثرات مبتھی برآیدات اورافراز رہے متعلق بزھنے والی توقات پر پڑنے شروع ہوگئے ہیں۔ بالیاتی سال 2018 کی تیسری سہان میں معت مند با آیدن یں اضافہ کار جمان کی رفتار تیزی ہے بوسے ہوئے الیاتی اخراجات کے ساتھ مقابلہ ٹیس کریا ہے گی ۔ خاص طور پر ترقیاتی اخراجات خاص طور پر انقراع کی داخراجات کے ساتھ متعودوں میں تیزی ہے اضافہ ہوا ہے۔ اس کے نتیج میں سال 2018 کی تیسری سابق میں مالیاتی خسارہ گذشتہ سال کے مقالبے میں بلندر زیاب س مالیاتی کی کو پورا کرنے کے لیے حکومت کو SBP اور پیرونی و رائع ہے قرضہ لینا یڑے گا۔ خاص طور یہ سال 2018 کی تیسری سہادی میں SBP سے ایا ہوا قر نے۔ 2 کھرپ دو ہے رہاجس کے مطلق کسی سابھ میں بلندترین ہے۔ بلندتر تار اتی قریبے اور پاکستانی دو ہے کی قدر میں کی کی وجہ سے بیرونی قریضے فاصے بڑھ گئے۔قصر محقاثی سرگرمیوں میں توسیج اور کم افراط ذر کے شکسل کا اٹھار جاری کھاتے اور مالیاتی خسارے کو تا پور کھنے میں ہے۔ یکنی یغیر بیاں یا کستان کی موجود ورتی کے سائنگل کے لیے مسائل بیدا کرری میں اوراس سلسلے میں گلیل المدت اور و طلی بدت کی یا لیسیوں کا نفاظ اہم ہوگا تھیل المدت میں بھٹر کہ کوششیں کرنا ہوں گئ تا کہ سال 2019 کے بجٹ یں نکس میں دی گئیں منظور شدہ سبوات کے لیں منظر میں مالیاتی اخراجات کو حقیقت ایشدانہ بنانام نے گا۔ وسطی مدت کی اصلاحات کی شرورت ہوگی تا کیکس کے بنیاد کو وسطے کیا جائے تا کہ موجود واقلام کی کارکرد گی کو بڑھایا جائے۔ای طرح قبی طور پر پیرونی ڈرائع ہے قرضہ لیاجائے بتیارتی خسارے کو تم کرنے کے لیے پالیسی اقد امات کی ضرورت ہے۔اس مقصد کے لیے پیمی اہم ہے کہ برآ مدات کی مسابقتی صلاحیت کو متناثر کرنے والے ڈھانجاتی معاملات کوهل کیاجائے۔

سال 2018 کے لیےافراط زرمے متعلق بے شرریاحول کے ساتھ بھی پیداوار کی تموکااندازہ 8۔ 5 فیصد ہے جو کہ 13 سالول کا پلندترین ہے۔ تا ہم خزاب ہوتا ہوا ہوا ہوا کی اوائنگیوں کا آواز ن اور بلند مالیاتی خیارہ اصل سنلک جزرے گا۔

سال2017-18 مي يا كتان كي معيشت كي جملكيال درج ذيل جي -

- ملکی مجمولی تومی پیدادار کی شرح 5.8 فیصدر ای جو13 سال کی بلند ترین نمو ہے۔
 - . پاکستان کے ذرعتی مبنعتی اور خدمات سے سکٹر زکی تر تی 3.8 فیصد ہوئی۔

- ترتی پینی اقدامات معیشت فائده الله آن رق بشول ترقیالی تربید کم افراط زر چوکنامالیاتی بالیسی اور CPEC مینتمانی مرماییکاری معیشت کی بمانی و توت محرکه فرایم کرر باب ب
- 13 سالوں میں زراعت نے بلنداوروسی نیاد توحاسل کی جس کے پس منظر میں ہونے والے اقدامات میں زرقی سیکٹر کو قر ضوں کی فراہمی میں اضافہ واجھے معیار کے 📆 اور بروقت زرعی
 - روے پیانے کی منعتی پیدادارنے 6.13 فیصد تمو کا ندارج کیا جو10 سالوں میں بلند ترین ہے۔
 - صنعتی کیشر نے5.80 فیصد تمو کا اندارج کیا جو10 سالوں میں بلندر بن ہے۔
 - صنعتی پیدادارئے 24.6 فیصد تمو کا اندازج کیا جو11 سالوں میں بلندترین ہے۔
 - خدمات كے كيكفرنے 6.43 فيصد فهو كا كذشته دوسالوں اندار إن كيا-
- برآ مات میں تمویز روزی ہے اور EU کی جانب ہے اعظے دوسالوں کے لیے GSP شبت مثیت میں وسطح ایک شبت مثین رفت ہے۔ جاری سال کے 8ماو میں برآ مات کی تمویز بنار کاوٹ
 - سال 2018 من قوى أهدنى افرجات علم ربى جب اس كالقابل 2017 عليا كيا تواس من يجت مرما يدكارى كالكيب برحاء
 - سال 2016-17 كى كياس كى بيداوار 10.671 ملين كانفون مين 11.8 فيصدا شاف كرساته 355 11.9 كانطيس ري-
- سال2017–18 کے دوران جاول کی پیداور تاریخی طور ہے 7,442 مزار ٹوٹو کی بلندترین مقدار رہی جبکہ گذشتہ سال کی پیداوار 8.49 م فرار ٹوٹنی جس شرر 8.5 فیصدا منافے کا اندراج کیا۔
 - ك كافسل في الذشيرسال ك75.482 ملين المزين 7.4 فيعدا شاف كساته 81.102 ملين عزى أيك اور كارو بيداوارد يمعى -
 - یا کتان کی برآ مدات بزهری بین اوراس کے منفی اثر ات ختم بورے ہیں۔
 - گذشته سال کی غیر مکلی سر ماییکاری ، بلواسطه اور بلاواسطه دونوں ، کے مطلح میں اضافے دیکھا گیا۔ جولائی مارچ کی مدت میں خالص FDI کااندرونی تزمیل میں 4. 4 فیصد اضافے بز ھ كر1.2 ارب امريكي ذالر بوڭي جبكه كذشة سال اى مدت مين 2 ارب امريكي ذالرتقي _

منتقبل كامتظرنامه:

کم منافع کی شرح، محصص منذی کا کریش، توارتی اورد گیریزے مالیاتی اداروں سے خت مسابقت نے مضار پیکٹری منافع بخشی کوفتسان پیٹیا یکن اس کے باوجووز میؤورمت میں مضارب کی آپریڈنگ آ یدنی میں خاصی بہتری آئی۔انتظامیہ کاروباری بلان کوبہتر کرنے ماندرو ٹی گلرانی کوزیادہ موکز اور موکز مارکیٹنگ کے لیے کاروباری حکمت مملی کے اہم اقدامات افھارہ ہے۔ ا تظامیر کی اصل توجہ کا مرکز بر تھیکی سے سرمایہ میں اضاف ہے۔ اس ملیط میں اس مدت میں 15 ملین کے بر تھیکیٹ کا سرمایہ شائل کیا گیا ہے۔ عزید یرک انتظامیہ للبتی سرمایہ (equity) میں اضافے كيلي تخلف قوى اورين الاقوامي سرمايد كارول يراابل كررى بدامكان بك معقبل قريب بين مضاد بدكوان عشب روهل كي قو تع ب

موجوده آؤینز میسرز باروتید شین چربدی ایندکوه چارفروا کا پیمیش، جن کی مت خدمات تتم ہوگئی جن کیونکہ انکی یافتی سالہ مت مکمل ہوچکی ہے ابتدار وو دوبارہ تقرری کے لیے اپنی خدمات پیش نمیں کر سکتے۔ بورڈ نے میسرز ارالیں ایم اولین حیور لیافت او مان ایٹر کو وہ جان کا کا تھینٹس کولیلور بیرونی آڈیٹر کے 60 جون 2019 کے اختتام تک کے لیے تقر رک کی توثیق کر چکا ہے جور جسز ارمضاریہ، الين اي في السلام آباد كي منظوري عشر وطب-

اعتراف:

بورۇ سىكىيىر ئىيىزايىندا ئىجىچىنى ئىيىشن آف ياكستان درجىئرارمىغدار بەرەپىك دولت ياكستان اور NBFI يىندەخشار بەلسىوى لىشن كەن كى ھمائىت اور دېنمانى كرئے پراحسان مندى كاظهار كرمتا ہے۔ بورڈ اپنے سرچیکیٹ کنندگان اورگا کول کے عناد کرئے کوسرا بتاہے اوران کے شکر گذارے ٹیس ان بات کا ایقین دلاتاہے کہ بممناب اندرونی گرائی کا نظام کو برقرار رکھیں گے اور خدمات کی فراہی میں ذاتی توجہ اور بہتر کار پوریٹ گونٹس کی ادائیل کیلئے تمام شعبوں میں مثانی ماحول کو مجھی برقر ار رکھے گ۔

آخرين بورة فرسك آئى في الى مضارب كى انتظاميداورتهام عملى خلوس اروخت محت كوسرابتا ب

شيرازبث چيف ايگز کشوآ فيسر

2018. 26 عادي آخير 26 عادي

SIX YEAR'S FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BALANCE SHEET

(Rs in Million)

Year Ended June 30.	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017
CURRENT ASSETS	+ +			-		
Cash and bank balances	0.05	3.52	30.35	24.58	20,70	13.91
Ijarah rental receivables	1.92	0.32	0.49	0.53	0.99	0.38
Advances, prepayments & other receivables	40.10	36.94	33.54	13.64	12.34	10.35
Short term investments	2.17	22.01	7.77	11.87	36.18	7.64
Current portion of musharikah receivables	74.49	19.37	3.96	16.50	14.41	42.39
Current portion of murabaha receivables	3.74	23.00	6.65	22.21	18.34	
Total Current Assets	118.73	105.16	82.76	89.32	102.96	74.67
NON-CURRENT ASSETS	+ +					
Long term murabaha receivables	23.00	-	21.84		-	- 7
Long term musharikah receivables			- 2	- 2		29.03
Long term advances and deposits	3.41	3.21	2.71	2.71	2.71	2.71
Investment Property		97.08	92.08	87.08	82.08	77.08
Fixed assets under ijarah arrangements	9.46	11,68	22.49	31.89	35.64	42.29
Fixed assets under own use	1.15	2.44	1,74	1.28	0.78	2.57
Intangible assets	0.75	0.42	0.09	0.17	0.08	-
Investment in subsidery	57.31		-		-	
Total Non-Current Assets	95.07	114.83	140.95	123.12	121.30	153.68
Total Assets	213.80	219.98	223.71	212.44	224.26	228.35
CURRENT LIABILITIES	+					
Creditors, accrued & other liabilities	14.99	12.08	4.29	3.61	5.20	1.49
Short term borrowing	(*)		2		10.00	15.00
Musharikah profit payable	1.43	1.43	1.43	1.43	1.43	1.43
Musharikah finance	14.54	12.14	11.20	8.20	4.20	0.70
Current portion of non current liabilities	6.49	7.87	5.02	4.41	5.08	7.73
Provision for taxation	3.19	3.19	3.19	* 1	-	*
Unclaimed profit distribution	7.69	7.65	9.82	8.41	9.48	9.37
Total current Liabilities	48.44	44.36	34.94	26.06	35.38	35.72
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES						
Long term security deposits	2.70	1.94	6.57	10.25	10.05	9.76
Deffered murabaha income	2.70	1,94	2.41 8.98	10.25	10.05	9.76
EOUITY	2.70	1.94	8.98	10.25	10.05	9.76
Issued, subscribed & paid up capital	201.88	201.88	201.88	201.88	201.88	201.88
Reserves	39.99	43.60	49.06	47.81	46.69	49.79
Revenue Reserve and Unappropriated profit	(79.23)	(71.79)	(71.14)	(73.56)	(69.73)	(68.80)
Total Equity	162.64	173.68	179.79	176.12	178.84	182.87
Total Equity & Liabilities	213.80	219.98	223.71	212.44	224.26	228.35

SIX YEAR'S FINANCIAL SUMMARY PROFIT & LOSS SUMMARY

(Rs in Million)

Year Ended June 30.	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017
INCOME	T		Ť			
Income from Ijarah	2.90	3.32	5.54	10.12	12.72	15.49
Profit on murabaha investments	4.03	4.03	4.19	3.66	2.25	-
profit on musharikah investments	0.94	0.00	0.56	1.65	3.61	6.34
income from investment property	1	4.37	7,50	7.50	7.50	7.50
Profit on deposits	0.82	0.54	0.67	0.38	1.54	1.42
Income from short term investments	0.09	0.09	0.17	3.96	6.29	0.48
	8.77	12.36	18.61	27.26	33.90	31.23
OTHER INCOME	T 1		1	F		
Reversal of provision against non performing	2	14.54	11.02	4.34	9.85	10.2
musharikah receivables						
Reversal of musharikah profit held in suspense account		1.99	0.00	2.64	0.00	2.9
balances written back		0.66	5.32	0.83	0.00	0.5
Other income	0.20	0.58	1.11	0.69	0.16	2.4
	0.20	17.77	17.45	8.51	10.01	16.16
Total Income	8.97	30.13	36.06	35.77	43.91	47.39
EXPENSES	1	1	1		1	11.00000
Operating Expenses	13.90	14.23	19.36	19.49	21.49	23.97
Depreciation on assets under ijarah	5.76	3,97	5.16	8.85	10.83	11.75
Provision against non performing musharikah receivables	26.02	•		-	-	-
Musharikah profit held in suspense account	1.76	₽1.,	140	8	£1	-
Finance cost	1.65					
Other operating expenses	1.41	1.61	1.25	1.52	0.67	0.47
Total Expenses	50.51	19.81	25.77	29.85	32.98	36.19
Taxation	1.00	-		0.75	-	0.09
Profit/ (loss) before Management Fee	(41.54)	10.32	10.29	5.92	10.93	11.11
Management Fee		1.03	1.03	0.59	1.09	1.11
Net Profit	(41.54)	9.29	9.26	5.33	9.84	10.00

Statement of Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance For the period ended June 30, 2018

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance contained in Regulation # 5.19, sub regulations # 5.19.24 stipulated in Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are as per the following:

Male	03		
Female	None		

2. The composition of board is as follows:

Independent Directors	01
Other Non-executive Director	01
Executive Directors	01

- The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, including this company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).
- 4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.
- The Board has developed a vision/ mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.
- All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.
- The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.
- The Board of directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.
- The Board has not yet arranged Directors' Training program for the directors as some of the directors had already obtained the relevant training or is exempt under the regulations.
- 10. The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

- 11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.
- 12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:
 - a) Audit Committee:

Mr. Naveed Amin	Chairman
Mr. Arslan Khan Khakwani	Member
Mr. Shaheen Rashid	Member (died on May 2018)
Mr. Muhammed Ilyas	Secretary

b) HR and Remuneration Committee:

As on June 30, 2018:

Mr. Shaheen Rashid	Chairman (died on May 2018)
Mr. Naveed Amin	Member
Mr. Arslan Khan Khakwani	Member

As on reporting date:

Mr. Naveed Amin	Chairman
Mr. Arslan Khan Khakwani	Member
Mr. Shiraz Butt	Member

- 13. Chairman of HR & R committee (Mr. Shaheen Rashid who died on May 15, 2018) was non-executive director till May 2018. As on reporting date in accordance with the Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange, Mr. Naveed Amin (Independent Director) is new Chairman of HR & R committee.
- 14. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee for compliance.
- 15. CEO and the Chairman of IBL Modaraba Management (Private) Limited, The Management Company of First IBL Modaraba, was the same person and Chairman was an Executive Director as on June 30, 2018. As on reporting date, Mr. Shiraz Butt is Chief Executive / Director of IBL Modaraba Management (Private) Limited and Mr. Arslan Khan Khakwani is Chairman of the Board.

As on reporting date in compliance to the Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Chairman and CEO are two separate persons.

16. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly and yearly) of the committee was as per following:

Audit Committee	04
HR and Remuneration Committee	04

17. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function. Mr. Hasnain Shafqat who is considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the company.

- 18. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.
- 19. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.
- 20. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

5	п	П
9	ч	ч

Chairman October 26, 2018

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compilance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of First IBL Modaraba Management (Private) limited for the year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations

As a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations as reflected in the paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:

Serial no.	Paragraph reference	Description
1	13	Chairman of the Human Resource and Remuneration committee is a non-executive director.
II	15	Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Modaraba is the same person.

HORWATH HUSSAIN CHAUDHURY & CO.

Chartered Accountants

(Engagement Partner: Muhammad Nasir Muneer)

Lahore

Dated: October 26, 2018

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDERS

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of **First IBL Modaraba** ("the Modaraba") as at June 30, 2018 and the related profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof (hereinafter referred to as the financial statements), for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

These financial statements are the Modaraba Company's (IBL Modaraba Management (Private) Limited) responsibility who is also responsible to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980) and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis; evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by the Modaraba Company, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

- a) We were unable to verify receivable balances aggregating to Rs. 6.322 million (2017: Rs. 7.163 million) included in "Advances, prepayments and other receivables" and any movement therein owing to non-availability of related records / information / direct confirmation.
- in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Modaraba Company in respect of the Modaraba as required by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980) and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981;
- c) in our opinion;
 - (i) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980) and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, and are in agreement with the books of accounts and are further in accordance with the accounting policies consistently applied;
 - (ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Modaraba's business; and
 - the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance with the objects, terms and conditions of the Modaraba;
- d) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the possible effects of the matter described in preceding paragraph "a", the balance sheet, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980) and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Modaraba's affairs as at June 30, 2018 and of the profit,
 - comprehensive loss, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and
- e) In our opinion, Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Modaraba and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under Section 7 of that Ordinance.

LAHORE Dated: October 26, 2018 HORWATH HUSSAIN CHAUDHURY & CO.

Chartered Accountants

(Engagement Partner: Muhammad Nasir Muneer)

SHARI'AH ADVISOR'S REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED June 30, 2018

I have conducted the Shari'ah review of First IBL Modaraba managed by IBL Modaraba Management (Pvt.) Ltd. for the year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with requirement of the Shari'a Compliance and Shari'ah Audit Mechanism for Modaraba.

I acknowledge and certify that as Sharia Advisor of the Modaraba, the financial arrangements, contracts and transactions entered into by the company with its customers, stake holders and participants are in compliance with the requirements of Sharia rules and principles.

During the review I have verified the following in compliance with Shariah mechanism:

The transactions of Ijarah, Murabaha and Diminishing Musharakah were reviewed on random selection basis.

Declarations, description of assets, relevant purchase invoices, sequence and order of the documents and time difference between purchases and declaration where applicable were reviewed to obviate the possibility of fictitious transactions.

Sharia Compliance Checklists (SCC) of transactions was also reviewed on random basis.

During the year, credit approvals, customer-specific transaction process flows, text of documents and security documents were reviewed to ensure Shariah compliance while offering financing products to the customers.

Random physical inspections and concrete measures were taken to verify the purchase evidences and invoices of financing transactions, thus further improving the quality of internal controls.

Other related documents and procedures followed by different functional areas were found proper.

During the year onsite training has been given to the staff.

There is no receipt of charity during the financial year accordingly no amount was credited into charity account.

Conclusion

In this context of detailed Shari'ah review carried by the undersigned for the Year ended June 30, 2018, transactions during the period executed by FIBLM were found satisfactory as required by Shari'ah Audit Mechanism.

MUFTI SALMAN AMMED KHAN
MUFTI SALMAN AMMED KHAN
SHARITAH ADVISOR
FIRST IBL MODARABA

Dr. Mufti Salman Ahmad Khan

Shari'ah Advisor First IBL Modaraba October 26, 2018

BALANCE SHEET AT JUNE 30, 2018

	Note	2018 Rupees	2017 Rupees
ASSETS	10000	(IMPOREZ)	WOOMARATA
Current Assets			
Bank balances	6	23,503,774	13,917,457
Ijarah rentals receivable	7	439,111	376,363
Advances, prepayments and other receivables	8	9,212,560	10,358,870
Short term investments	9	5,927,880	7,639,596
Short term musharaka receivables	10	53,857,958	42,878,982
Current portion of long term musharaka receivables	11	11,204,478	10,496,836
Murabaha receivable	No.	500,000	15300500
		104,645,761	85,668,104
Non-Current Assets			
.ong term musharaka receivables	11	1,891,061	18,035,698
ong term advances and deposits	12	2,619,260	2,709,260
Investment property	13	72,083,662	77,083,690
Fixed assets under ijarah arrangements	14	40,132,004	42,287,085
Fixed assets under own use	15	2,850,284	2,566,646
Intangible asset	16	Al-Mathga	ielmatinie E
	_	119,576,271	142,682,379
Total Assets	~ #	224,222,032	228,350,483
LIABILITIES			
Current Liabilities			
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities	17	1,044,156	1,489,834
Short term borrowing	18	2	15,000,000
Musharaka profit payable	30.70	1,430,192	1,430,192
Musharaka finances		700,000	700,000
Current portion of long term security deposits	19	11,114,320	7,728,560
Deferred murabaha income	77.54	17,600	-
Inpresented profit warrants	Ļ	10,480,807	9,372,983
Non-Current Liabilities		24,787,075	35,721,569
	10:	10.155.550	0.764.100
ong term security deposits	19 -	10,155,550	9,764,180
Total Liabilities		34,942,625	45,485,749
NET ASSETS	=	189,279,407	182,864,734
REPRESENTED BY:			
Certificate capital	20	216,875,000	201,875,000
Reserves	21	48,385,700	49,798,523
Accumulated loss	21	(75,981,293)	(68,808,789
Contingencies and commitments	22	(13/301/532)	(00,000,789
onungencies and commitments	229	189,279,407	182,864,734
The annexed notes from 1 to 40 form an integral part of	these financial statements.		
S/D	S/D		S/D
CHIEF EXECUTIVE	DIRECTOR		DIRECTO

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

	Note	2018 Rupees	2017 Rupees
INCOME FROM OPERATION			
Income from ijarah	23	20,231,423	15,499,595
Profit on murabaha investment		64,466	
Profit on musharaka investments		6,707,422	6,343,460
Income from investment property		7,495,440	7,495,440
Profit on modaraba certificate, term deposit			
receipts and bank deposits		144,550	1,424,104
Income from short term investments	24	*:	472,844
OTHER INCOME		34,643,301	31,235,443
Reversal of provision against non-performing	Ť		
musharaka receivables - net	10.2	25	10,246,548
Reversal of musharaka profit held in suspense account	Patricipal	2	2,979,037
Balances written back		25	540,022
Other income	25	1,046,069	2,398,870
	_	1,046,069	16,164,477
TOTAL INCOME	-	35,689,370	47,399,920
EXPENSES			
Operating expenses	26	(21,191,898)	(23,970,954)
Depreciation on assets under ijarah	14	(13,631,214)	(11,754,536)
Other operating expenses	27	(818,432)	(465,139)
	=	(35,641,544)	(36,190,629)
Profit before Tax		47,826	11,209,291
Taxation	_		(89,647)
Profit before Modaraba Company's Management Fee		47,826	11,119,644
Modaraba Company's management fee	28	(4,783)	(1,111,964)
Net Profit for the Year	_	43,043	10,007,680
Earnings per Modaraba Certificate - Basic and Diluted	29 _	0.002	0.496
The annexed notes from 1 to 40 form an integral part of these	financial state	ments.	
S/D			S/D
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR	ii ii		DIRECTOR
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR	5		DIRECTOR

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018 Rupees 2017 Rupees Net Profit for the Year 43,043 10,007,680 Other comprehensive income Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss Unrealized (loss) / income on available for sale investments (1,421,432) 1,110,715 Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (1,421,432) Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year 1,110,715 Total Comprehensive Loss/Income for the Year (1,378,389) 11,118,395 The annexed notes from 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

	Note	2018 Rupees	2017 Rupees
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES			
Cash Generated from / (Used in) operations	30	27,770,104	(7,519,409)
Income taxes paid	s -	(84,199)	(118,674)
Net Cash Genrated from / (Used in) Operating Activities		27,685,905	(7,638,083)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES			
Purchase of fixed assets under ijarah arrangements Purchase of fixed assets under own use Capital work in progress Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets under own use Proceeds from disposal of assets on terminating ijarahs Proceeds from disposal of short term investments Dividend income received Profit on term deposit receipts and bank deposits Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from Investing Activities		(14,103,900) (148,010) (752,000) 46,641 2,812,245 - - 144,550 (12,000,474)	(31,337,100) (246,550) (2,233,000) 309,103 13,503,638 30,000,000 127,591 1,424,104
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES			
Musharaka finances Dividends paid		(6,099,114)	(3,500,000) (7,194,664)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities	2	(6,099,114)	(10,694,664)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents		9,586,317	(6,784,961)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		13,917,457	20,702,418
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year	=	23,503,774	13,917,457
The annexed notes from 1 to 40 form an integral part of these final	ancial statements		
S/D S/D CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR			S/D_ DIRECTOR

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

			Reserves		li.	
Particulars	Certificate Capital	Statutory Reserve	Unrealized Gain on Revaluation of Available for Sale Investments	Total	Accumulated Loss	Total Equity
	- 22		Rupee	15		44
Balance as at June 30, 2016	201,875,000	41,058,348	5,627,924	46,686,272	(69,729,120)	178,832,152
Comprehensive income for the year						
Net profit for the year	(4)	*	*	19	10,007,680	10,007,680
Other comprehensive income for the year	160	¥	1,110,715	1,110,715	170	1,110,715
Total comprehensive income for the year	15	55	1,110,715	1,110,715	10,007,680	11,118,395
Transferred to statutory reserve	1.81	2,001,536	*	2,001,536	(2,001,536)	*
Transactions with owners						
Profit distributed for the year ended June 36, 2016	182	\$	*	E.	(7,085,813)	(7,085,813)
Balance as at June 30, 2017	201,875,000	43,059,884	6,738,639	49,798,523	(68,808,789)	182,864,734
Comprehensive income for the year						
Net profit for the year	(6)	*		æ	43,043	43,043
Other comprehensive loss for the year	325	- 5	(1,421,432)	(1,421,432)	129	(1,421,432)
Total comprehensive loss for the year	787	22	(1,421,432)	(1,421,432)	43,043	(1,378,389)
Issuance of Capital Certificates	15,000,000	73		15	٩	15,000,000
Transferred to statutory reserve	3.00	8,609	*	8,609	(8,609)	
Transactions with owners						
Profit distributed for the year ended June 30, 2017	352	5/	*	2.5	(7,206,938)	(7,206,938)
Balance as at June 30, 2018	216,875,000	43,068,493	5,317,207	48,385,700	(75,981,293)	189,279,407

The annexed notes from 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements,

S/D S/D S/D S/D S/D DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note 1

Legal Status and Nature of Business

First IBL Modaraba ("the Modaraba") is a multi purpose, perpetual and multi dimensional Modaraba formed under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 and rules framed thereunder, having its registered office at Room # 1, 87-Aurangzaib Block, New Garden Town, Lahore. The Modaraba is managed by IBL Modaraba Management (Private) Limited (Modaraba Management Company) incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 2017 and registered with the Registrar of Modaraba Companies.

The Modaraba is listed on Pakistan stock exchange. It commenced its operations on October 19, 1989 and is currently engaged in various Islamic modes of financing and operations including ijarah, musharaka and murabaha arrangements.

Note 2

Basis of Preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") and the Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs)
 as are notified under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and made applicable to Modarabas under the
 Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980; and
- The requirements of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981; prudential regulations and directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the Modaraba Regulations).

Wherever, the requirements of the Modaraba Regulations differ from the requirements of these standards, the requirements of the Modaraba Regulations take precedence.

2.2 Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the measurement of certain financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the requirements of IAS-39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement) and at the overall contract price in accordance with IFAS-1 (Murabaha).

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is Modaraba's functional and presentation currency, All financial information presented in Pak Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest rupee unless otherwise stated.

Note 3

Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under circumstances, results of which form the basis of making judgment about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

These estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by the management that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are as under:

Fixed assets

The Modaraba reviews the useful lives of fixed assets, both under own use and ijarah arrangements, on regular basis. Any change in the estimate might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of fixed assets with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment, if any.

Short term investments

The Modaraba has recorded its short term investments by using quotations from active market. This valuation is subjective to market price fluctuation and therefore, cannot be determined with precision.

Ijarah rentals, musharaka and murabaha investments

Ijarah rentals, musharaka receivables and murabaha investments are stated net of provision, where applicable. Provision is recognised for ijarah rentals receivable, musharaka receivables and murabaha investment in accordance with the prudential regulations for the Modarabas issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Bad and doubtful receivables are written-off when identified.

Note 4

Changes in Accounting Standards, Interpretations and Pronouncements

4.1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards which became effective during the year

IAS 7, "Statement of Cash Flows" has introduced an additional disclosure that will enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

4.2 Standards, interpretation and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and relevant to the Modaraba, would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation:

Standard or Interpretation Effective Date (Period beginning on or after)

IFRIC 22	Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration	January 1, 2018
IFRS 9	Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement	July 1, 2018
IFRS 15	Revenue from Contracts with Customers	July 1, 2018
IFRS 16	Leases	January 1, 2019
IAS 23	Borrowing costs	January 1, 2019

The Modaraba expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any material impact on the Modaraba's financial statements in the period of initial application; except for IFRS 9.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards have also been issued by the IASB. Such improvements are generally effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

Effective Date

(Period beginning on or after)

-IFRS 14 'Regulatory Deferral Accounts'	January 1, 2016
-IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts '	January 1, 2021

The Modaraba expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any material impact on the Modaraba's financial statements.

Note 5

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless stated otherwise.

5.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and balances with banks.

5.2 Murabaha investmen

Murabaha investments are stated net of provision against potential murabaha losses. Provision is recognized in accordance with prudential regulations for Modarabas issued by the SECP or on the estimate of management, whichever is higher. Bad debts are written off when identified. Murabaha receivables are recorded by the Modaraba at invoiced amount and disclosed as such in the balance sheet.

Purchases and sales under murabaha and the resultant profit are accounted for on the culmination of murabaha transaction. However, the profit on that portion of sales revenue not due for payment is deferred and shown in the balance sheet as liability.

5.3 Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans and receivable; held-to-maturity investments and / or available-for-sale financial assets. When financial assets are recognized initially, they are measured at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The Modaraba determines the classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each financial year-end.

5.3.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in the category 'Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss'. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Gains or losses on investments held for trading are recognised in the profit and loss account.

5.3.2 Held-to-maturity

Non-derivatives financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as heldto-maturity when the Modaraba has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in this classification. Other long-term investments, that are intended to be held-to-maturity, are subsequently measured at amortized cost.

This cost is computed as the amount initially recognized minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization, using the effective markup rate method, of a difference between the initially recognised amount and the maturity amount. This calculation includes all fees and charges paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective markup rate, transaction cost and all other premiums and discounts. For investments carried at amortized cost, gains and losses are recognized in the profit and loss account and then the investments are derecognized or impaired, as well as, through the amortization process.

5.3.3 Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. These are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than twelve months after the reporting date, which are classified as non-current assets, Loans and receivables comprise loans, deposits and other receivables in the balance sheet.

5.3.4 Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non derivative financial assets that are designated as available-forsale or are not classified in any of the three preceding categories. After initial recognition available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value with gains and losses being recognized as a separate component of equity until the investments are derecognized or determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is included in the profit and loss account.

Fair value of investments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid price at the close of business on the reporting date. For investments where there is no active market, value is determined using valuation techniques.

5.4 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. Significant financial liabilities are secured deposits against Ijarah (lease) assets, musharaka payable and other liabilities

5.5 Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at the time when the Modaraba becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and are derecognized: in the case of asset, when the contractual rights under the instrument are derecognized, expired or surrendered: and in case of liability, when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Any gain / (loss) on the recognition and derecognition of financial assets and liabilities is included in the profit / (loss) for the period in which it arises.

Assets and liabilities that are not of contractual nature and that are created as a result of statutory requirements are not financial instruments of the Modaraba.

5.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and the Modaraba intends to either settle on a net basis, or to recognize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

5.7 Musharaka investment

Musharaka investments are stated net of provision. Provision is recognized in accordance with prudential regulations for Modarabas issued by the SECP or on the estimate of management, whichever is higher. Bad debts are written off when identified.

5.8 Fixed assets

Assets given to customers under ijarah arrangements

Assets given to customers under ijarah arrangements are accounted for as operating lease and are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Assets under ijarah arrangements are depreciated using the straight line basis over the shorter of ijarah term or asset's useful life. In respect of additions and transfer during the year, depreciation is charged proportionately over the period of ijarah.

Assets in own use - Tangible

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost in relation to assets comprises acquisition and other directly attributable costs. Subsequent costs are included in assets' carrying amounts when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Modaraba and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Carrying amount of parts so replaced, if any, is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Gains / losses on disposals are carried to the profit and loss account in the year of disposal.

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account using the straight line method at the rates as specified in note 15 to these financial statements so as to write off the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives without taking into account any residual value. Depreciation on additions to the tangible fixed assets is charged from the month in which an asset is available for use while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off.

Assets in own use - Intangible

Expenditure incurred on intangible asset is capitalized and stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any identified impairment loss. Intangible assets are amortized on straight line basis over a period of three years.

5.9 Investment property

Property not held for own use or for sale in the ordinary course of business is classified as investment property. The Modaraba values its investment property, which is held to earn rentals and / or for capital appreciation purposes, using the cost model i.e. at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment less.

Depreciation on investment property is charged to income on straight-line method over its estimated useful life at the rates specified in note 13 to the financial statements. Depreciation on additions to investment property is charged from the month in which a property is available for use while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the property is disposed off.

5.10 Creditors and other liabilities

Creditors and other liabilities are measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received whether billed to the Modaraba or not.

5 11 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Modaraba has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits would be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each the reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Future operating losses are not provided for.

5.12 Revenue recognition

Ijarah rentals are recognized as income on accrual basis, as and when the rental becomes due over the lease period.

Profit on murabaha investment is recognized on pro-rata accrual basis, calculated on number of days for which

Return on deposits with bank is recognized on accrual basis.

Profit on investment under musharaka arrangements is recognized on accrual basis and additional profit, if any, is recognized on declaration by the investee company in accordance with terms of issue.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividends is established.

Income from fee and commission is recognized as and when it becomes due.

5.13 Taxation

Under the current tax law, the income of a non-trading Modaraba is exempt from income tax provided that the Modaraba distributes ninety percent (90%) of its profits for the year, as cash dividend to the certificate holders, after appropriating statutory reserves. Where such profit is not distributed, provision for tax is made on taxable income at the current tax rates applicable to the Modaraba after taking into account available tax exemptions and tax credits, if any.

5.14 Proposed profit distribution to certificate holder

Profit distribution to certificate holders is recognized as a liability in the period in which such distributions are approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company.

5.15 Related party transactions

Transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at arm's length on the same terms and conditions as are applicable to third party transactions or otherwise as approved by the Board of Directors.

5.16 Impairment

Carrying amounts of the Modaraba's assets are reviewed at each the reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of such asset is estimated and impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss account. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised recoverable amount but limited to the extent of the initial cost of the asset. A reversal of the impairment loss is recognized as loss in the profit and loss account.

5.17 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (the Chief Executive Officer of the Modaraba). Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire fixed assets and intancible assets.

Note 6				Note	2018	2017
Bank B	alances				Rupees	Rupees
Profit be	earing bank accou	int			21,372,393	11,166,494
Non pro	ofit bearing bank a	accounts			2,131,381	2,750,963
					23,503,774	13,917,457
Note 7	Rentals Receiva	ablo				
Ljai aii	Rentals Receive	able				
	red good				439,111	376,363
Conside	red doubtful			7.2	8,902,560	8,855,077
					9,341,671	9,231,440
Provisio	n against doubtfu	il ijarah rentas	1		(8,902,560) 439,111	(8,855,077 376,363
7.1	These represent	rentals receiv	able against assets given und	er Ijarah am	angements.	1,110,000
7.2	Movement in pro	ovision against	doubtful ijarah rentals is as f	ollows:		
	Opening balance	3			8,855,077	9,525,449
	Addition during				214,063	787,175
	Reversed during	the year			(166,580)	(406,829)
		-1 7.1 		23.1	47,483	380,346
	Ijarah balances	written off				(1,050,718
	Closing balance				8,902,560	8,855,077
Note 8 Advanc	ces, Prepaymen	ts and Other	Receivables			
	e income tax				1,121,457	1,037,257
	e to employees (L	Insecured - co	nsidered good)		597,651	648,066
Prepayn	nents				2,159,174	596,404 2,281,727
Accrued	profit on mushar	aka receivable	M. (2,139,174	2,201,/2/
	receivable				11,209,724	11,437,648
Less: I	Profit held in susp	ense account		11.2	(10,600,386)	(10,523,063)
					609,338	914,585
	profit on muraba	iha receivable			11,666	22702000
Other re	eceivables				6,432,382 9,212,560	7,162,558
Note 9					9,212,560	10,358,870
	Ferm Investmer	ıts				
	ents in listed equ	ity securities a	re classified as:	Vere	The second second	5 700 504
2551700	lable for sale air value through	and the second		9.1 9.2	5,317,249 610,631	6,738,681 900,915
ALIE	iir value trirougn	profit of loss		9.2	5,927,880	7,639,596
9.1	Available for s	ale				
	2018	2017	Name of entity			
	No. of shares	certificates	Control of the Contro			
	Holdings are in					
	15,662	13,162	The Searle Company Limited	1	5,317,249	6,738,681
9.2	At fair value th		or loss			
	Holdings are in	150				
	219		IBL Health Care		17,570	24,400
	200	200	Attock Refinery Limited		43,062	76,516
	100,000	100,000	First Punjab Modaraba		550,000	800,000
	100,419	100,400			610,632	900,916

Note 10	Note	2018	2017
Short Term Musharaka Receivables		Rupees	Rupees
Short term musharaka receivables	10.1	53,857,958	42,878,982

10.1 This represents musharaka finance provided to customers for business activities for a maximum period of one years. The provisional rate of profit on these finances ranges from 12% to 15% (2017: 10.5% to 18.48%) per annum and secured by way of hypothecation of goods, book debts and equitable mortgage of property. These charges have not been registered.

Note 11 Long Term Musharaka Receivables

Considered good		13,095,539	28,532,534
Considered doubtful		6,093,971	6,093,971
	11.1	19,189,510	34,626,505
Provision against classified portfolio	11.2	(6,093,971)	(6,093,971)
Less: Current portion		(11,204,478)	(10,496,836)
		1.891.061	18.035.698

- 11.1 This represents musharaka finance provided to customers for business activities for a maximum period of five years. The provisional rate of profit on these finances ranges from 12% to 15% (2017: 10.5% to 18.48%) per annum and secured by way of hypothecation of goods, book debts and equitable mortgage of property. These charges have not been registered.
- 11.2 This represents provision made against overdue principal amount of musharaka finance on time based criteria in terms of the requirement of the prudential regulations applicable to the Modaraba. Accrued profit of Rs. 10,600,386 (2017: Rs. 10,523,063) is held in suspense account (Refer to note 8). Movement in provision against classified portfolio is as follows:

Opening balance		6,093,971	16,340,519
Recognized during the year			200000000000000000000000000000000000000
Reversed during the year	11.2.1		(10,246,548)
			(10,246,548)
Closing balance		6,093,971	6,093,971

11.2.1 This represents reversal of provision against outstanding principal after cash recovery from different parties.

Note 12 Long Term Advances and Deposits

Advances		1,500,000	1,500,000
Deposits		1,119,260	1,209,260
		2,619,260	2,709,260
Note 13			
Investment Property			
Cost			
Opening balance	13.1	100,000,465	100,000,465
Additions during the year			and an accompany of the
Closing balance		100,000,465	100,000,465
Accumulated Depreciation			
Opening balance		(22,916,775)	(17,916,752)
Charged during the year	13.2 & 26	(5,000,028)	(5,000,023)
Closing balance		(27,916,803)	(22,916,775)
		72 083 662	77 083 690

- 13.1 This represents fifth floor of the Library Building situated at C-II, Johar Town, Lahore. This floor measures 13,370 square feet.
- 13.2 The Modaraba depreciates investment property on straight line basis @ 5% per annum.
- 13.3 The fair value of investment property as at June 30, 2018 was estimated to be Rs. 102.769 million (2017: Rs. 102.769 million). This management estimate was based on the latest valuation carried on June 30, 2017 by an independent valuer.
- 13.4 The forced sale value of investment property as at June 30, 2018 was estimated to be Rs. 87.354 million (2017: Rs. 87.354 million). This management estimate was based on the latest valuation carreled on June 30, 2017 by an independent valuer.

Note 14 Fixed Assets under Ijarah Arrangements

Description	Plant and Machinery	Vehicles	Office Equipment and Computers	Total
-	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees
Year Ended June 30, 2018				
Cost				
Balance as at July 01, 2017	22,975,853	44,511,033	603,825	68,090,711
Additions	55,400	14,048,500	3	14,103,900
Disposals	(*)	(3,524,000)	9	(3,524,000)
Balance as at June 30, 2018	23,031,253	55,035,533	603,825	78,670,611
Accumulated depreciation				
Balance as at July 01, 2017	7,572,025	17,697,157	534,444	25,803,626
Charge for the year	6,241,680	7,389,534	8	13,631,214
Disposals	55.	(896,233)	=	(896,233)
Balance as at June 30, 2018	13,813,705	24,190,458	534,444	38,538,607
Total as at June 30, 2018	9,217,548	30,845,075	69,381	40,132,004
Year Ended June 30, 2017				
Cost				
Balance as at July 01, 2016	16,155,813	43,747,533	603,825	60,507,171
Additions	12,721,600	18,615,500	9	31,337,100
Disposals	(5,901,560)	(17,852,000)	(4	(23,753,560)
Balance as at June 30, 2017	22,975,853	44,511,033	603,825	68,090,711
Accumulated depreciation				
Balance as at July 01, 2016	8,016,771	16,312,130	534,444	24,863,345
Charge for the year	4,266,338	7,488,198	3	11,754,536
Disposals	(4,711,084)	(6,103,171)	=	(10,814,255)
Balance as at June 30, 2017	7,572,025	17,697,157	534,444	25,803,626
Total as at June 30, 2017	15,403,828	26,813,876	69,381	42,287,085

14.1 General description of significant ijarah arrangements (IFAS-2)

This represents Ijarah arrangements made by the Modaraba at profit rates ranging from 10.00% to 17.00% (2017: 10.00% to 17.00%) per annum. These arrangements are secured against assets under ijarah, personal / corporate guarantees, demand promissory notes executed by Musta'jir and other collaterals.

14.2 Aggregate amount of future ijarah rentals receivable on the basis of ijarah arrangements executed upto the reporting date are as follows:

	11.555	Rupees	Rupees
Not later than one year		8,222,828	28,861,240
Later than one year but not later than five years		8,273,683	10,739,185
		16,496,511	39,600,425
ote 15 led Assets under Own Use			

Not

2,250,284 600,000 2,850,284 Operating fixed assets Capital work in progress - Advance for purchase of vehicle 333,646 2,233,000 2,566,646

15.1 Operating fixed assets

Description	Machinery	Furniture and Fittings	Vehicles	Office Equipment	Computers and Accessories	Total
	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees
Year Ended June 30, 2018						
Cost						
Balance as at July 01, 2017	1,987,400	4,763,295	358,700	1,400,017	2,585,138	11,094,550
Additions		96	2,461,020	44,500	27,490	2,533,010
Disposals	4.7	Ħ	(253,700)	(15,000)	7	(268,700)
Balance as at June 30, 2018	1,987,400	4,763,295	2,566,020	1,429,517	2,612,628	13,358,860
Accumulated depreciation						
Balance as at July 01, 2017	1,972,286	4,644,410	334,920	1,278,665	2,530,623	10,760,904
Charge for the year	15,114	35,040	492,284	42,348	31,585	616,371
Disposals	191	12	(253,699)	(15,000)	2	(268,699)
Balance as at June 30, 2018	1,987,400	4,679,450	573,505	1,306,013	2,562,208	11,108,576
Total as at June 30, 2018		83,845	1,992,515	123,504	50,420	2,250,284
Year Ended June 30, 2017						
Cost						
Balance as at July 01, 2016	1,987,400	4,639,595	1,904,210	1,344,867	2,517,438	12,393,510
Additions	190	123,700		55,150	67,700	246,550
Disposals	190	16	(1,545,510)	16	€	(1,545,510)
Balance as at June 30, 2017	1,987,400	4,763,295	358,700	1,400,017	2,585,138	11,094,550
Accumulated depreciation						
Balance as at July 01, 2016	1,953,110	4,615,557	1,324,624	1,214,469	2,505,718	11,613,478
Charge for the year	19,176	28,853	323,980	64,196	24,905	461,110
Disposals	3.1	82	(1,313,684)	9	23	(1,313,684)
Balance as at June 30, 2017	1,972,286	4,644,410	334,920	1,278,665	2,530,623	10,760,904
Total as at June 30, 2017	15,114	118,885	23,780	121,352	54,515	333,646
Depreciation rates	20%	20%	20%	20%	33.33%	

15.2 These contain fully depreciated assets of Rs. 10,257,654 (2017: Rs. 10,244,640) that are still in use by the Modaraba.

	IIDIC ASSEL			IMPASS.	, nopeco
Carryin	g value of intangi	ble - computer	software 16	4	8
16.1	Net Carrying	Value		-	
	Net carrying va Additions during		alance		83,338
	Additions during	g tric year			83,338
	Amortization du	iring the year			(83,338)
16.2	Gross Carryin	g Value		-	
	Cost			1,250,000	1,250,000
	Accumulated ar	nortization		(1,250,000)	(1,250,000)
	Net book value			MI MEN	- Minimum
Note 1			***		
Credit	ors, Accrued an	d Other Liabi	lities		
Accrue	dexpenses			279,448	307,362
Payable	to the Modaraba	Management	Company	4,783	711,964
Other li	abilities			759,925	470,508
Note 1	.8			1,044,156	1,489,834
Short '	Term Borrowing	9			
	presented short sued against thes		received from a director. During	g the current year, fully paid	certificates have
Note 1	0	SE 50			
	erm Security D	eposits			
Security	deposit - Ijarah			21,269,870	17,492,740
Less; C	urrent portion			(11,114,320)	(7,728,560)
				10,155,550	9,764,180
Note 2	.0				
Certifi	cate Capital	2000			
	2018 Number of	2017 certificates			
Author	rized:				
Autio	50,000,000	50,000,000	Modaraba Certificates of Rs. 10 e	ach 500,000,000	500,000,000
Issued	, subscribed an	Action of the second			
	2018 Number of	2017 certificates			
	20,000,000	18,500,000	Modaraba Certificates of Rs. 10 e issued as fully paid in cash	ach 200,000,000	185,000,000
	1,687,500	1,687,500	Modaraba Certificates of Rs. 10 e issued as fully paid bonus certific		16,875,000
	21,687,500	20,187,500		216,875,000	201,875,000
20.1	During the curr to note 17).	ent year 1,500	,000 modaraba certificates of Rs 1	0 each, have been issued to a	Director (refere
20.2	An amesonic	of the number	of certificates outstanding as at t	he beginning and at the end	of the year is as
	Opening balance	e of certificates	i	20,187,500	20,187,500
	Certificates issu			1,500,000	
	Closing balance	of certificates		21,687,500	20,187,500
			37	*	

2018 Rupees

Note

2017 Rupees

Note 16 Intangible Asset

			Note	2018	2017
20.3	Certificates of the	ne Modaraba h	eld by associates / related parties are as under	Rupees	Rupees
	2,030,905	2,030,905	IBL Modaraba Management (Pvt.) Limited	20,309,050	20,309,050
	3,070,000	3,070,000	University of Management and Technology	30,700,000	30,700,000
	3,015,820	1,515,820	Director	30,158,200	15,158,200
	8,116,725	6,616,725	1	81,167,250	66,167,250
Note 2	GL-				
Reserv	es				
Statutor	y reserve		21.1	43,068,493	43,059,884
Unrealiz	ed gain on revalu	ation of availa	ble for sale investments	5,317,207	6,738,639
				48,385,700	49,798,523

21.1 Statutory reserve represents profits set aside in compliance with the requirements of prudential regulations for Modarabas issued by the SECP. These regulations require the Modaraba to transfer at least 20% after tax profit, if any, up to a maximum of 50%, in the statutory reserves until the reserve equals 100% of the paid up capital. Thereafter, a sum not less than 5% of the after tax profit is to be transferred into the statutory reserve each year. During the year, an amount of Rs. 8,609 (2017: Rs. 2,001,536) has been transferred from profit for the year to statutory reserve with the approval of the Board of Directors of the Management Company.

Note 22

Contingencies and Commitments

There were no material contingencies and commitments outstanding as at the reporting date (2017: Nii).

Note 23

Income from Ijarah

Income from ijarah rental		20,278,906	15,879,941
Ijarah income suspended - net	7.2 & 23.1	(47,483)	(380,346)
		20,231,423	15,499,595

23.1 This represents ijarah income suspended in accordance with the prudential regulations applicable to the Modaraba.

Note 24

Income from Short Term Investments

Dividend income		060	127,591
Dividend income at fair value through profit or loss			345,253
			472,844
Note 25			
Other Income			
Documentation charges		191,968	190,073
Gain on termination of ijarah arrangements		184,478	564,333
Gain on disposal of fixed assets under own use		46,641	77,279
Miscellaneous		622,982	1,567,185
		1,046,069	2,398,870
Note 26			
Operating Expenses			
Salaries, allowances and other benefits	26.1	9,796,718	10,200,648
Communication expenses		232,946	265,921
Travelling and conveyance	26.2	891,737	1,217,765
Postage and stamps		137,572	98,870
Advertisement		61,900	56,240
Legal and professional charges		1,429,788	3,787,547
Rent, rates and taxes		900,232	860,338
Fees and subscription		883,960	752,130
Repairs and maintenance		313,425	209,413
Utilities		269,616	259,097
Insurance		204,371	198,428
Stationery, printing and other expenses		259,747	287,378
0.5			

	Note	2018 Rupees	2017 Rupees
Depreciation / amortization:			
- Investment property	13	5,000,028	5,000,023
- Owned - tangible	15	616,371	461,110
 Intangible assets 	16	7.6	83,338
Entertainment		113,351	118,665
Bank charges		8,388	7,706
Office supplies		71,748	106,337
		21,191,898	23,970,954

26.1 Remuneration of Officers

Salaries and other benefits include remuneration of officers:

Remuneration	4,282,787	6,709,574
Employer's contribution to provident fund	221,280	381,300
The work the attraction of the contract and an indicate the contract and t	4.504,067	7.090.874
Number of persons	195	7

- 26.2 Officers include Chief Operating Officer (COO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of Internal Auditor and Company Secretary.
- 26.3 COO and CFO are also provided with Modaraba owned and maintained vehicles.

Note 27 Other Operating Expenses

Auditors	remuneration	27.1	450,825	447,525
Provision	n on musharaka profit receivable		77,323	
Default :	surcharge on withholding tax		12	17,614
Unrealiz	ed loss on re-measurement of investments			
at fair	value through profit or loss		290,284	9 3
2772-1			818,432	465,139
27.1	Auditors' remuneration			
	Audit fee		275,000	275,000
	Review of half yearly financial statements and other certifica	ations	158,125	157,525
	Out of pocket expenses		17,700	15,000
			450,825	447,525

Note 28 Modaraba Company's Management Fee

In accordance with Section 18 of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, management fee @ 10% of annual profits is paid to the Modaraba Management Company.

Earnings per Modaraba Certificate - Basic and Diluted

The calculation of the basic earnings per modaraba certificate is based on the following data:

Net profit for the year (Rupees)	43,043	10,007,680
Weighted average number of modaraba certificates outstanding (Numbers)	20,687,500	20,187,500
Farnings per certificate - basic (Rupees)	0.002	0.496

- 29.1 Basic earnings per modaraba certificate have been computed by dividing profit for the year as stated above with weighted average number of Modaraba certificates.
- 29.2 There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per modaraba certificate.

Note 30 Note	2018	2017
Cash Generated from Operations	Rupees	Rupees
Net profit for the Year	43,043	10,007,680
Adjustment for:		
- Depreciation on fixed assets under own use	616,371	461,110
- Depreciation on investment property	5,000,028	5,000,023
- Depreciation on fixed assets under ijarah arrangements	13,631,214	11,754,536
- Amortization on intangible asset	illimo v z v zbyzani. II	83,338
- Balances written back	2	(540,022)
 Gain on disposal of fixed assets under own use 	(46,641)	(77,279)
- Reversal of provision against non-performing musharaka receivables - net	9	(10,246,548)
 Reversal of musharaka profit held in suspense account 	77,323	(2,979,037)
- Revaluation loss / (gain) on investment at fair value through profit or loss	290,284	(345,253)
Gain on termination of ijarah arrangements	(184,478)	(564,333)
Profit on term deposit receipts and bank deposits	(144,550)	(1,424,104)
- Dividend income		(127,591)
	19,239,551	994,840
Operating profit before working capital changes	19,282,594	11,002,520
Decrease / (Increase) in operating assets:		
- Advances, prepayments and other receivables	1,170,787	5,077,012
- Ijarah rentals receivable	(62,748)	612,459
- Long term musharaka receivables	15,436,995	(46,754,073)
- Short term musharaka receivables	(10,978,976)	=
- Long term murabaha receivable	(500,000)	18,340,882
- Long term loans and deposits	90,000	
Increase / (Decrease) in operating liabilities;	TOTAL TOTAL	
- Long term security deposits	3,777,130	2,367,262
-Short term borrowings	=======================================	5,000,000
- Creditors, accrued and other liabilities	(445,678)	(3,165,471)
Net changes in working capital	8,487,510	(18,521,929)

30.1 Liabilities arising from financing activities

[As at June 30, 2017	Non-cash changes	Cash flows (Net)	As at June 30, 2018
	***************************************	Rupees		
Short term borrowing	15,000,000	(15,000,000)	¥	82
Total liabilities from financing activities	15,000,000	(15,000,000)	×	3

Note 31 Maturity of Assets and Liabilities

Assets Bank balances Ijarah rentals receivable Advances, prepayments and other receivables Stort term investments Mushanaka receivables Murabaha receivable Long term edvances and deposits Investment property Fised assets Total Assets - June 30, 2018 Liabilities Creditors, acrused and other ilabilities Unpresented profit warrants Mushanaka profit payable Mushanaka finances Deferered murabaha income Security deposits Total Liabilities - June 30, 2018	23,503,774 439,111 621,004 610,631 25,847,108 416,669 8,720,678	Rupees 8,771,946	8,591,556 5,317,249 30,443,382	Rupees	Rupees	23,503,774 439,111
Bank balances Ijarah rentals receivable Advances, prepayments and other receivables Stort term investments Murbaha receivables Murbaha receivables Murbaha receivables Murbaha receivables Investment property Fixed assets Total Assets - June 30, 2018 Liabilities Crediturs, accrued and other liabilities Unpresented profit warrants Musharaka profit payable Musharaka finances Deferred murabaha income Security deposits Total Liabilities - June 30, 2018	439,111 621,004 510,631 25,847,108		8,591,556 5,317,249 30,443,382			
tjarah rentals receivable Advances, prepyments and other receivables Short term investments Musharaka receivables Musharaka receivables Long term advances and deposits Investment property Fined assets Total Assets - June 30, 2018 Liabilities Crediturs, accrued and other liabilities Unpresented profit warrants Musharaka profit payable Musharaka finances Deferred murshah income Security deposits Total Liabilities - June 30, 2018	439,111 621,004 510,631 25,847,108		8,591,556 5,317,249 30,443,382			
Advances, prepayments and other receivables short term investments short term investments shutarbark receivables (Murabaha receivables (Murabaha receivable) (Murabaha receivable to cong term advances and deposits investment property Filead assets Total Assets - June 30, 2018 Liabilities Crediturs, accrued and other liabilities inpresented profit warrants (Musharaka profit warrants) (Musharaka profit payable Husharaka finances) Deferred murabaha income security deposits fotal Liabilities - June 30, 2018	621,004 610,631 25,847,108 - 416,669	9	5,317,249 30,443,382	8.00	4	439,111
hiort term investments lusharaka receivables lusharaka receivables ung term advances and deposits ong term advances and deposits rotal Assets - June 30, 2018 Liabilities creditars, accrued and other liabilities ingresented profit warrants lusharaka profit payable lusharaka finances beferred murabaha income elecutry deposits total Liabilities - June 30, 2018	610,631 25,847,108 - 416,669	8,771,946	5,317,249 30,443,382	2	= =	
usharaka receivables urobaha receivables urobaha receivable urobaha receivable ong term edvances and deposits vestrent property xeed assets otal Assets - June 30, 2018 liabilities recitors, accrued and other liabilities recitors, accrued and other liabilities presented profit wurrants ulsharaka profit payable usharaka frances eferred murabaha income ecurity deposits otal Liabilities - June 30, 2018	25,847,108 - 416,669	8,771,946	30,443,382	2		9,212,560
urabeha receivable ng teem advances and deposits westraent property wed assets otal Assets - June 30, 2018 labilities reditors, accrued and other liabilities presented profit warrants usharals profit payable usharals frances eferred murabaha income ecurity deposits otal Liabilities - June 30, 2018	416,669	8,771,946			14	5,927,880
ong term advances and deposits westrient property wed assets end assets = June 30, 2018 labilities resiturs, accrued and other liabilities presented profit warrants ulsharaka profit payable usharaka firances eferred murabaha income ecurity deposits otal Llabilities - June 30, 2018				1,891,061		66,953,497
westment property end assets orbal Assets - June 30, 2018 abilities reditors, accrued and other liabilities presented profit warrants usharada profit payable usharada frances effered murabaha income ecunity deposits tal Liabilities - June 30, 2018			500,000	ner entire a	54	500,000
vestment property end assets - June 30, 2018 abilities editors, accrued and other liabilities presented profit warrants disharaka profit payable usharaka finances efferred murabaha income ecunty deposits tal Llabilities - June 30, 2018			220,700	2,619,260	54	2,619,260
otal Assets - June 30, 2018 labilities reditors, accrued and other liabilities represented profit warrants usharaka profit payable usharaka firances eferred murabahi income ecurity deposits otal Liabilities - June 30, 2018		1.250,007	3,333,352	20,000,112	47.083.522	72,083,662
otal Assets - June 30, 2018 labilities reditors, accrued and other liabilities presented profit wurrants ulsharaka profit payable usharaka frances eferred murabaha income ecunity deposits otal Liabilities - June 30, 2018	with englance	915	6.666.505	27,594,190	(10000000)	42,982,288
abilities editors, accrued and other liabilities spresented profit warrants sistanaka profit payable saharaka finances ferrend murabaha income scurity deposits tal Liabilities - June 30, 2018		,,,,,,	0,400,500	ANJON HANG		Telanelikon
reditors, accrued and other ilabilities represented profit warrants usharaka profit payable usharaka finances eferred murabaha income ecurity deposits tal Llabilities - June 30, 2018	60,158,975	10,022,868	54,852,044	52,104,623	47,083,522	224,222,032
npresented profit warrants lutharsids profit payable lushrads firances eferred murabahs income ecurity deposits otal Liabilities - June 30, 2018						
usharaka profit payable usharaka firantes- eferred murabha income ecurity deposits otal Llabilities - June 30, 2018	279,448	217,802	546,906	- 7		1,044,156
usharaka firances eferred murabaha income ecurity deposits otal Liabilities - June 30, 2018	10,480,807	9	-	*	14	10,480,807
eferred murabaha income scurity deposits otal Liabilities - June 30, 2018	1,430,192	251	2		2.5	1,430,192
scurity deposits otal Liabilities - June 30, 2018	200,000	4		- 2		700,000
otal Liabilities - June 30, 2018	-	5.00	17,600			17,600
	10,559,560		554,760	10,155,550	12	21,269,870
	23,450,007	217,802	1,119,266	10,155,550		34,942,625
et Assets - June 30, 2018	36,708,968	9,805,066	53,732,778	41,949,073	47,083,522	189,279,407
otal Assets + June 30, 2017	20,464,533	870,967	79,523,023	54,267,130	73,224,830	228,350,483
otal Liabilities - June 30, 2017	18,945,048	1,130,559	15,645,962	9,764,180	(6)	45,485,749
et Assets - June 30, 2017	1,519,485	(259,592)	63,877,061	44,502,950	73,224,830	182,864,734
- ITA					2018	2017
epresented by:					Rupees	Rupees
eroficate capital					216.875,000	201.875.000
Serves					48,385,700	49,798,523
cumulated loss					(75,981,293)	(68,808,789
cumulated loss.					189,279,407	182,864,734

Note 32 Segment Analysis

32.1 Geographical segments

The Modaraba's assets are employed and its income is derived in Pakistan.

32.2 Business segments

Murabaha receivable and profit on murabaha receivable

	2018	2018		
	Rupees	%	Rupees	%
Construction	500,000	100.00	(#1 ₁₀	141
Musharaka receivable and profit or	n musharaka receivable			
Media advertising	22,177,370	33.12	37,736,695	52.84
Construction	2,643,133	3.95	27,811,734	38.95
Education	6,179,507	9.20		
Individuals	35,953,488	53.70	5,863,086	8.21
	66,953,498	99.97	71,411,515	100.00

Ijarah receivable				
Medical and pharmaceuticals	245	34	67,483	18.00
Media advertising			4,200	1.00
Individuals	401,346	91.40	138,750	37.00
Others	37,765	8.60	165,930	44.00
	439,111	100.00	376,363	100.00
Investment in ijarah under (IFAS-2)				
Individuals	23,025,727	57.40	21,118,131	49.90
Medical and pharmaceuticals	1,439,752	3.60	1,484,196	3.50
Media advertising	7,870,517	19.60	13,827,979	32.70
Leasing	283,906	0.70	283,906	0.70
Hotel	120,000	0.30	120,000	0.30
Engineering	60,000	0.10	60,000	0.10
Others	7,332,102	18.30	5,392,873	12.80
	40,132,004	100.00	42,287,085	100.00

Note 33 Balances and Transactions with Related Parties

- 33.1 In accordance with Section 18 of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, management fee @ 10% of annual profits is paid to the Modaraba Management Company.
- 33.2 Related parties comprise the Management Company, major certificate holders of the Modaraba and their close family members, directors of the management company and their close family members, key management personnel of the Management Company and their close family members and entities with common directors or under common management.
- **33.3** Details of transactions with related parties and balances outstanding with them as at the reporting date are as follows:

Transactions during	the year		2018 Rupees	2017 Rupees
Related party	Relationship	Nature of Transaction	NOTE THE	2047 R 4255
IBL Modaraba Management (Private)	Management Company	Management fee accrued during the year	217,802	1,111,964
Limited) Securitarian	Management fee paid during the year	711,964	1,493,303
University of Management and	Holds 14.16% of the paid up	Rent of library building received	7,495,440	7,495,440
Technology	certificates of Modaraba	Dividend paid during the year	1,095,990	1,077,570
IBL Modaraba Management (Pvt.) Limited	Holds 9.36% of the paid up certificates of Modaraba	Dividend paid during the year	725,033	712,848
		Dividend paid during the year	541,148	532,053
Director	Director	Short term borrowing obtained	8	5,000,000
		Short term borrowing converted to certificate capital	15,000,000	
Outstanding Balance	e at the year e	nd		
Short term borrowing Payable to the Modara	ha Management	Company	- 4.783	15,000,000 711.964

Transactions with related parties, except for the management fee payable to the Management Company, are carried at an arm's length in the normal course of business.

Note 34 Capital Risk Management

While managing capital, the objectives of the Modaraba are to ensure that it continues to meet the going concern assumption, enhances certificate holders' wealth and meets stakeholders' expectations. The Modaraba ensures its sustainable growth viz. maintaining optimal capital structure and keeping its profits payable low thus maintaining smooth capital management.

In line with others in the industry, the Modaraba monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and non current) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated by adding equity, as shown in the balance sheet, into net debt. As on the reporting date, the Modaraba is geared 5% (2017: 15%).

Note 35 Financial Risk Management

35.1 The Modaraba has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk Liquidity risk Market risk

The Board of Directors of Modaraba Management Company ("the Board") has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Modaraba's risk management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Modaraba's risk management policies.

The Modaraba's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Modaraba, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Modaraba's activities. The Modaraba, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Modaraba's Audit Committee oversees how the management monitors compliance with the Modaraba's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Modaraba. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by the Internal Audit Department.

35.2 Credit Risk:

35.2.1 Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter parties to the financial instruments fail to perform as contracted. The Modaraba is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily from investments in ijarah, murabaha and musharaka contracts), deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

35.2.2 Credit risk related to receivables

The Modaraba has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy parties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Modaraba only transacts with those parties that are rated the equivalent of investment grade and above. The Modaraba has internally developed rating criteria to rate its customers which is supplemented by ratings supplied by independent rating agencies, where available. The Modaraba also uses other publicly available financial information and its own trading records to rate its customers. The Modaraba's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved parties. Credit exposure is controlled by credit limits that are internally reviewed and approved by the risk management committee annually.

The management monitors and limits the Modaraba's exposure to credit risk through monitoring of clients' credit exposure, reviews and conservative estimates of provisions for doubtful receivables, if any, and through the prudent use of collateral policy. The management is of the view that it is not exposed to significant concentration of credit risk as its financial assets are adequately diversified in organizations of sound financial standing covering various industrial sectors and segments.

35.2.3 Credit risk related to financial instruments and cash deposits

The Modaraba limits its exposure to credit risk by only investing in liquid securities and only with parties that have a track record. Given these high credit ratings, the management does not expect any party to fail to meet its obligations, except to the extent of impairment loss recognized.

35.2.4 Exposure to credit risk

Carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Financial assets	Note	2018 Rupees	2017 Rupees
Bank balances	6	23,503,774	13,917,457
Ijarah rentals receivable	7	439,111	376,363
Advances and other receivables	8	7,053,386	8,077,143
Short term investments	9	5,927,880	7,639,596
Musharaka receivables	10 & 11	66,953,497	71,411,516
Murabaha receivable		500,000	-
Long term advances and deposits	12	2,619,260	2,709,260
5 8		106,996,908	104,131,335

Geographically all credit exposure is concentrated in Pakistan.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for receivables against Ijarah, musharaka and murabaha investment at the reporting date by type of customer was:

Education	6,179,507	72
Medical and pharmaceuticals	- White Park (Care)	67,483
Media advertising	22,177,370	37,740,895
Individuals	36,354,834	6,001,836
Construction	3,143,133	27,811,734
Others	37,765	165,930
	67,892,609	71,787,878

The maximum exposure to credit risk for the following financial assets at the reporting date by mode of financing was as under:

Ijarah rentals receivable	439,111	376,363
Accrued profit on murabaha and musharaka	621,004	914,585
Musharaka receivables	66,953,497	71,411,516
Murabaha receivable	500,000	
	68.513.612	72 702 464

Impairment losses

The aging of financial assets at the reporting date was:

	Gross	Impairment	Gross	Impairment
	2018	2018	2017	2017
	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees
Not past due				
Past due 0-90 days	77,232	8	221,880	215,973
Past due 90-180 days	60,280	60,280	202,449	202,449
Past due over 180 days	25,596,917	25,596,917	26,171,890	25,053,689
	25,734,429	25,657,197	26,596,219	25,472,111

35.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Modaraba will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding to an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions due to dynamic nature of the business. The Modaraba's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Modaraba's reputation.

The maturity profile of the Modaraba's financial liabilities based on contractual amounts is disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements.

35.3.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Modaraba's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on risk.

35.3.2 Exposure to currency risk

The Modaraba has no exposure to foreign currency risk as at the reporting date.

35.3.3 Other market price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instrument traded in the market. The Modaraba is exposed to equity price risk in respect of short term investments available for sale and at fair value through profit or loss.

35.3.4 Sensitivity analysis - equity price risk

A change of 1% in value of investments would have increase or decrease equity by Rs. 59,279 (2017: Rs. 76,396).

35.3.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying values of all financial assets and financial liabilities approximate to their fair values.

Note 36 Provident Fund Related Disclosures

The Modaraba operates a recognized provident fund for its permanent employees wherein equal monthly contributions are made by the Modaraba and employees into the fund at the rate of 10% of the basic salary. Obligation for contributions to defined contribution plan is recognized as an expense in the profit and loss account. The following is information of fund as on June 30,:

100/1000/100/1000/100/100/100/100/100/1	2018	2017
Fund Balance	1,787,953	2,740,317

36.1 The Modaraba has maintained provident fund account in MCB Bank Limited which has balance of Rs. 1,787,953 (2017: Rs. 2,740,317).

Number of Employees

	Numbers	Numbers
Employees as at June 30,	14	15
Average number of employees during the year	14	15

Note 38 Date of Authorization for Issue

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issue on October 26, 2018 by the Board of Directors of IBL Modaraba Management (Private) Limited (the Management Company).

Note 39 Profit Distribution

Subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2018, the Board of Directors of the Management Company in their meeting held on October 26, 2018 declared a final profit distribution of Rs. Nil (2017: Rs. 0.357) per Modaraba certificate which in total amounts to Rs. Nil (2017: Rs. 7,206,938).

Note 40 General

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, to facilitate comparison. Following material rearrangements have been made in these financial statements for better presentation:

From	То	(Rupees)
Long term musharaka receivables	Current portion of long term musharaka receivables Short term musharaka receivables	10,496,836 492,710
Current portion of long term musharaka receivables	Short term musharaka receivables	42,878,982
S/D	s/D	S/D
CHIEF EXECUTIVE	DIRECTOR	DIRECTOR

DETAIL OF CATEGORIES OF CERTIFICATE HOLDERS AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

Categories of Shareholder	Total	% age
Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Their Spouses and Minor Children		
Directors		
Mr. HASSAN SOHAIB MURAD	3,015,820	13.91
	3,015,820	13.91
Associated Companies, Undertakings & Related Parties		
UNIVERSITY OF MANAGEMENT & TECHNOLOGY	3,070,000	14.16
IBL MODARABA MANAGEMENT (PRIVATE) LIMITED	2,030,905	9.36
8 5	5,100,905	23.52
NIT & ICP (Name Wise Detail)	At the state of	
CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST	1,078,774	4.9
	1,078,774	4.97
Banks, NBFCs, DFIs, Takaful, Pension Funds	140,596	0.65
Modarabas	70	0.00
Insurance Companies	517,033	2.38
Other Companies, Corporate Bodies, Trust etc.	4,722,813	21.78
General Public	7,111,489	32.79
	21,687,500	100.0

CATEGORIES OF CERTIFICATE HOLDERS AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

Categories of Shareholder	Number	Holding	% age
Modarabas	1	70	0.00%
Related parties	2	5,100,905	23.52%
Directors	1	3,015,820	13.91%
Banks	6	140,596	0.65%
Isurance Companies	3	517,033	2.38%
NIT & ICP	2	1,078,774	4.97%
Other	12	4,722,813	21.78%
Individuals	1226	7,111,489	32.79%
	1,253	21,687,500	100%

PATTERN CERTIFICATE HOLDING BY CERTIFICATE HOLDERS AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

No. of Shareholders	Shareholding		Total Shares held	
NO. Of Shareholders	From	To		
429		100	15,96	
308		500	87,29	
185	501	1,000	132,585	
230	1,001	5,000	500,093	
46	5,001	10,000	339,336	
14	10,001	15,000	180,287	
5	15,001	20,000	97,500	
3 2 3	20,001	25,000	67,500	
2	25,001	30,000	56,000	
3	30,001	35,000	97,875	
1	35,001	40,000	36,000	
2	40,001	45,000	88,500	
2	45,001	50,000	96,000	
1	50,001	55,000	51,087	
1	80,001	85,000	82,000	
1		95,000	92,700	
3	130,001	135,000	397,941	
1	145,001	150,000	150,000	
1	165,001	170,000	170,000	
1	240,001	245,000	240,068	
1	245,001	250,000	250,000	
1	280,001	285,000	280,50	
1	310,001	315,000	313,500	
1	460,001	465,000	460,500	
1	470,001	475,000	473,000	
1	505,001	510,000	509,990	
1	1,045,001	1,050,000	1,050,000	
1	1,075,001	1,080,000	1,078,774	
1	1,745,001	1,750,000	1,750,000	
1	2,030,001	2,035,000	2,030,90	
1	3,015,001	3,020,000	3,015,82	
1	3,065,001	3,070,000	3,070,000	
ī	4,425,001	4,430,000	4,425,76	
1,252	., .=5/6621	.,,	21,687,500	



Principal Office: 87 - Aurangzaib Block, New Garden Town, Lahore. Tel: +92 42 35952148 - 49, Fax: +92 42 35952150,

email: ibl@firstibl.com, web: www.firstibl.com

